AGENDA
RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M.
TUESDAY, JUNE 27, 2017
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL

WELCOME . .. By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process of
representative government.  Copies of Hus agendn, staff reports and otlier material available to the
Conmission are available at the City Clerk’s office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenue.  Your City
Government welcones your interest and hopes you will attend and participate in Rio Dell Planning
Connnission mectings often,

A. CALL TO ORDER
B. ROLL CALL
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
D. CEREMONIAL MATTERS
E. CONSENT CALENDAR
1) 2017/0627.01 - Approve Minutes of the May 23, 2017 Regular Meeting (ACTION) 1
F. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

This tune is for persons who wislt to address e Commission on any matter not on this agenda and over
which the Connnission has jurisdiction.  As such, a dinlogue with the Conumission or staff is not
mtended.  [Items requiring Conumission action not listed on this agenda may be placed on the next
regular agenda for consideration if the Commission directs, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of
the Commtission that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an wrgency nature
requiring immediate action. Please linit comments fo o maximun of 3 minules.

G. SCHEDULED MATTERS/PUBLIC HEARINGS/STUDY SESSIONS

1} 2017/0627.02 - Resolution No. PC-112-2017 Approving a Conditional Use Permit for
PMD, Inc. (Glen White Group) for Medicinal Cannabis Operations,
including Research and Development, Manufacturing Oils/
Concentrates, a Health and Wellness Center, a Distribution and
Processing Facility, a Tissue Culture Nursery and Research Facility
and a DigiPath Cannabis Testing Laboratory subject to Conditions of
Approval - File No. 205-111-021; Case No. CUP 17-01
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 6



2) 2017/0627.03 - Resolution No. PC-113-2017 Approving a Conditional Use Permit for
GreenHeart Industries LLC for Medicinal Cannabis Operations, including
Manufacturing Oils/Concentrates, Indoor Cultivation and a Distribution
and Processing Facility within a 19,200 foot building subject to Conditions
of Approval - File No. 205-111-075; Case No. CUP 17-02
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) ' 33

3) 2017/0627.04 - Discussion and Consideration of Parking Exception Request from Dennis
Wendt - File No. 205-111-012; Case No. DR-CUP-17-01
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION)

H. ADJOURNMENT

I In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need
special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Office of
the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting
will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility
to the meeting.

The next Regular Planning Conrmission meeting is scheduled for
Tuesday, July 25, 2017 at 6:30 p.u1.



Ri0 DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MINUTES
MAY 23, 2017

The regular meeting of the Rio Dell Planning Commission was called to order at 6:30
p.m. by Commissioner Angeloff,

Present were Commissioners Angeloff, Kemp, Marks, Strahan and Woodall,

Others present were Planning Commissioner Alternate Richter, Community
Development Director Caldwell and City Clerk Dunham.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Approve Minutes of the April 25, 2017 Regular Meeting

Commissioner Marks referred to page 10 of the minutes related to the proposed
amendment to the sign regulations and said her recollection is that the City Council
excluded illuminated signs in the Town Center (TC) and Neighborhood Center zones
intentionally because of the size of the signs. She suggested staff take a closer look
at the proposed regulations as the size of signage seems large for the Town Center
(TC) and Neighborhood Center (NC) designations. She said as she recalls, the other
issue was that people wanted to put large signs in the front yards of home
businesses which the Council was not in support of.

Motion was made by Woodall/Kemp to approve the consent calendar including
approval of the minutes of the April 23, 2017 as presented. Motion carried
4-0; Commissioner Marks abstained.

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

None
SCHEDULED MATTERS/PUBLIC HEARINGS/STUDY SESSIONS

Resolution No. PC-109-2017 Approving the Design Review Conditional Use Permit
for PMD, Incorporated for the development of three (3} buildings. Building 1; (4)
unit retail commercial; Building 2: Warehouse, distribution and packaging: Building
3: Cannabis Testing Lab (DigiPath), concentrate manufacturing, research and
development of cannabis medicinal products, and tissue culturing and plant nursery
subject to Conditions of Approval APN 205-111-021 - Case No. DR-CUP 17-02
Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and began by




RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
MAY 23,2017
Page 2

stating that staff was excited to be bringing forward the Conditional Use Permit
application for PMD, Incorporated (Glen White Group) for the design review of their
proposed development at the former Eel River Sawmill site. He noted that the
parcel proposed to be developed is the most northerly parcel at the site. He then
referred to the renderings that were presented and reviewed the buildings and
proposed uses. He reported that the actual cannabis activity application will be
coming before the Planning Commission at their June 27, 2017 regular meeting for
consideration.

He noted that the project as proposed, other than needing one additional bicycle
parking space on building 2, complies with the Rio Dell General Plan and Zoning
regulations. As such, staff conditioned the project to require the additional bicycle
parking space. He commented that it was a pleasure reviewing this project because
of how well it was put together.

Community Development Director Caldwell stated that both Glen White and his wife
Michelle and their designer, D] Cleek were present to answer questions.

Commissioner Angeloff disclosed that he currently has a contract with the applicant
to perform archeology work on a separate property as well as the fact that he is
President of the Rio Dell-Scotia Chamber of Commerce and Mr. White has attended
their meetings. He noted that he has no financial interests in this project so believes
It is not necessary to recuse him from discussion of the project and asked for
concurrence from staff and the Commission. Neither Commissioners nor staff could
see any potential conflict of interest.

Commissioner Woodall commented on how nice it is for the Commission to receive
such complete application materials and said the project is very impressive.

Commissioner Marks asked if the recommended action of the Commission is only on
approval of the building at this time and asked if the issue of storm drains will be
discussed at a future meeting.

Community Development Director Caldwell explained that storm drains are actually
covered under the design of the project including retention/detention basins. He
noted that the project once constructed will actually reduce storm water runoff by
approximately 40%. He noted that the storm water system as designed will enable
the storm water runoff to flow into those retention/detention facilities or to the



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
MAY 23,2017
Page 3

adjacent drainage ditches, noting that there is an existing drainage ditch in front of
the project site between the freeway and the site.

Commissioner Angeloff opened the public hearing to receive public comment on the
proposed project. There being no public comment received, the public hearing
closed.

Motion was made by Kemp/Woodall to approve Resolution No. PC-109-2017
approving the Design Review Conditional Use Permit for PMD, Incorporated as
conditioned. Motion carried 5-0.

Resolution No, PC-111-2017 recommending the Cityv Council amends Section
17.30.195 of the Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use Regujations of the Rio Dell
Municipal Code (RDMC) to allow for the therapeutic application and retail sales of
medical cannabis products excluding flowers, trim, leaf or cannabis infused edibles
accessory to _a Health and Wellness Center in the Industrial Commercial (IC)
designation located in the Sawmill Annexation area

Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and explained
the applicant is proposing the establishment of a Health and Wellness Center in the
northerly building of the proposed development including the holistic and
therapeutic application and sales of medical cannabis products such as oils,
tinctures, sublinguals, creams, lotions, pills, suppositories, and cosmetics. He said
this will not be a dispensary in the true definition of a “marijuana dispensary” as it
will not include the sale of flowers, trim, leaf or cannabis infused edibles.

He reported that staff supports the proposed use provided there is only one Health
and Wellness Center allowed administering and selling medical cannabis products.

He continued with review of the proposed amendments to Section 17.30.195 of the
Medical Cannabis Land Use Regulations.

Community Development Director Caldwell stated that Commissioner Woodall
identified a typographical error in the staff report which is the reason for providing
the supplemental handout. He explained the corrected language under (g] of the
Performance Standards will read: "Medical cannabis may not be inhaled, smoked,
eaten, ingested, vaped, or consumed at the premises and/or location” striking the
words "otherwise used or”. He stated for clarification that what that means is that



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
MAY 23,2017
Page 4

it allows for ‘the sale of medical cannabis products but nothing that can be
consumed.

Commissioner Marks asked for the definition of "ingested” and said she understood
that some products such as sublinguals are ingested under the tongue.

Glen White stated for clarification that they will only be applying topicals at the
Health and Wellness Center and that nothing will be ingested.

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that the Plan of Operation for the
Health & Wellness Center will be coming to the Planning Commission at the next
regular meeting on June 27, 2017.

Commissioner Marks referred to (k) of the General Provisions where it reads "etc.”
after the list of products to be administered and asked if that leaves it open for other
nroducts.

Community Development Director Caldwell explained that it does as there may be
other discoveries or products in the future that they are not aware of.

He stated that another change with the text amendment as recommended by Mayor
Wilson relates to the number of concurrent hours required for security cameras to
be digitally recorded and stored for security purposes increasing it from 240 hours
(10 days) to 720 hours (30 days). He noted that this seems to be the common
practice with other agencies,

He said with the proposed amendments, staff's recommendation is to open a puhlic
hearing to receive public input followed by adoption of Resolution No. PC-111-2017
recommending the City Council amends Section 17.30.195, Commercial Medical
Cannabis Land Use Regulations of the Rio Dell Municipal Code.

Commissioner Angeloff opened the public hearing to receive public input on the
proposed text amendment. There being no public comment, the public hearing
closed.

Commissioner Woodall asked for clarification that the use will be limited to one {1)
facility. She also questioned the hours of operation.



RIO DELL PLANNING COMMISSION
MAY 23,2017
Page 5

Staff clarified that the amendment only allows for -one {1} Health and Wellness
Center for administering and selling medical cannabis products.

Michelle White commented that the hours of operation for the Health & Wellness
Center will be from 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. however; the coffee shop will open earlier,
probably around 6 or 7 a.m.

Motion was made by Woodall/Marks to adopt Resolution No. PC-111-2017
recommending the City Council amends Section 17.30.195, Commercial Medical
Cannabis Land Use Ordinance of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to (1) identify
and define Health and Wellness Centers, including the therapeutic application and
retail sales of medical cannabis products including oils, tinctures, sublinguals,
creams, lotions, pills, suppositories, cosmetics, etc. but excluding the sale of flowers,
trim, leaf or cannabis infused edibles as a Conditionally Permitted use in the
Industrial Commercial zone in the Sawmill Annexation area; and (2) amend the
required hours of video security from 240 to 720 hours. Motion carried 5-0.

Community Development Director Caldwell commended Glen White and his
architect for submitting such a complete comprehensive project and said it's a
fantastic design and he is looking forward to the development. He added that he
believes this will be the iconic for cannabis related facilities on the north coast.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion was made by Commissioner Kemp/Marks to adjourn the meeting at 7:52
p.m. to the June 27, 2017 regular meeting. Motion carried 5-0.

Nick Angeloff, Chair
Attest:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk



M%%

DELU

5?5;’; ?&ﬁwg 32

For Meeting of: June 27, 2017

To: Planning Commission

From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director @
Through: Kyle Knopp, City Manager

Date: June 13, 2017

Subject: PMD Inc. Conditional Use Permit

File No. 205-111-021; Case No. CUP 17-01

Recommendation:

That the Planning Commission:

1. Receive staff's report regarding the proposed Conditional Use Permit;
2. Open the public hearing, receive public input, close the public hearing and deliberate:
3. Assuming that public testimony is substantially in support of the proposal, find that:

(a} The proposed use is allowed within the applicable zoning district and complies with
all other applicable provisions of this title and all other City ordinances;

{b) The proposed use is consistent with the general plan and any applicable specific
plan;

(c) The design, iocation, size, and operating characteristics of the proposed activity are
compatible with the existing and future land uses in the vicinity;

PMD inc, CUP PC June 201 ?



{cl) The site is physically suitable for the type, density and intensity of use being
propased, including access, utilities, and the absence of physical constraints;

(e} Granting the permit would not be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety,
convenience, or welfare, or materially injurious to. persons, property, or improvements
in the vicinity and zoning district in which the property is located; and

{fiThe Conditional Use Permit has been processed in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the California Goverament Code and the California Environmental Quality
Act {CEQA);

4. Adopt Resolution No. PC 112-2017 approving the Conditional Use Permit, subject to the
Conditions of Approval, Exhibit A.

Background

The Conditiona! Use Permit is for the cannabis related activities. Attachment 1 includes the

Plan of Operations for the proposed uses. The Plan of Operations addresses, employees, traffic,
security, waste management, etc. As the Planning Commission is aware, the buildings and the
landscaping were approved at your meeting of May 23, 2017, Again, the applicant is proposing
three (3) commercial buildings.

Building one (1}, the northerly building will include four (4) units of retail commercial use,
including a Holistic Spa, a Health and Wellness Center, a retail clothing store and a coffee bistro.
it will be a one (1) story building, 7,200 sq. ft. w/2400 sq. ft. mezzanine. The Health and
Wellness Center will be providing the holistic and therapeutic application and sales of medical
cannabis products, including oils, tinctures, sublingual’s, creams, lotions, pills, suppositories,
cosmetics, etc. The sale of flowers, trim, leaf or cannahis infused edibies are not allowed.

Building two {2} the middle building will be used for a commercial medical cannabis warehouse,
distribution and packaging facility. It too will be a one {1} story building, 10,141 sq. ft. w 3,210
sg. ft. mezzanine.

Building three (3}, the southerly building will include a cannabis testing laboratory (DigiPath), a
concentrate manufacturing facility manufacturing oils, tinctures, sublingual’s, creams, lotions,
cosmetics, etc. The oils will be made utilizing non-volatile and volatile processes and materials
{i.e. hexane, butane and dimethyl ether). The manufacturing of the oils and storage of volatile
rmaterials will be done in spark-proof blast rooms designed and built by Parkline Industries.
Building three {3} will also include the research and development of cannabis medicinal
products, a tissue culturing operation and associated plant nursery.

As the Commission is aware the State is in the final stages of adopting regulations for cannabis
businesses. Once adopted, local businesses are required to comply with both the State and
local regulations.

PMD Inc. CUP PC June 2017



Reguired Findings/Staff Analysis

Section 17.35.030 Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC} Conditional Use Permits.
i. Zoning Consistency

{a) The proposed use is allowed within the applicable zoning district and complies with all other
applicable provisions of this title and all other City ordinances;

Land Use: The property is zoned Industrial Commercial {IC). The purpose of the Industrial
Commercial zone is to provide for industrial and commercial uses. The applicant is proposing a
Health and Wellness Center that offers health services for the body and mind, including but not
limited to fitness, personal training, nutrition consulting, skin care services, massage, holistic
and herbal therapies, therapeutic application and retail sales of medical cannabis products
including oils, tinctures, sublingual's, creams, lotions, pills, suppositories, cosmetics, etc

Building two will include a warehouse, packaging and distribution facility. The new State
regulations require that all cannabis products be packaged for retail sale. Transportation
togistics will also be a part of the operations. This type of activity requires a Type 8 Distribution
License from the State.

Building three will include a manufacturing facility utilizing volatile and non-volatile methods of
extraction, a nursery/tissue culture and research and development facility and a testing
laboratory.

The Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance (CMCLUQO), Section 17.30.195 allows
medical cannabis facilities in the Sawmill Annexation area with a Conditional Use Permit. As
such, the proposed uses are allowed.

Section 17.30.185(9){i) requires that owners and employees who make operational or
management decisions content to a back ground check. The project has been conditioned
accordingly. Please refer to Exhibit A.

The buildings were evaluated for compliance with the development standards of the Industrial
Commercial (IC} zone, including setbacks, lot coverage, building height, parking, design review,
landscaping etc. as part of the Design Review approval.

Based on the information submitted, staff recommends that the proposed uses be found to be
consistent with the development standards of the Industrial Commercial {IC) zone and the
Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance, Section 17.30.195 of the Rio Dell Municipal
Code.

. c, cup u g 1




Performance Standards

Health and Weliness Centers: Section 17.30.195{14] of the Commercial Medical Cannabis
regulations identifies the reguired Performance Standards for Health and Wellness Centers.

(a} Health and Wellness Centers shall not self or distribute cannabis flowers, trim, leaf or
cannabis infused edibles.

{b} The facility shall be alarmed with an audible interior and exterior alarm system, unless
waived for extenuating circumstances by the Planning Commission that is operated and
monitored by a recognized security company, deemed acceptable by the Pianning
Commission. Any change in the security company shall be subject to the approval of the City
Manager or his designee. All current contact information regarding the medical marijuana
facility's security company shall be provided to the City.

{c} Security cameras shall be installed and maintained in good condition, and used in an on-
going manner with at least 720 concurrent hours of digitally recorded documentation in a
format approved by the Planning Commission. The cameras shall be in use 24 hours per day,
7 days per week, The areas to be covered by the security cameras shall include, but are not
limited to, the public areas, processing areas, storage areas, employee areas, all doors and
windows, and any other areas as determined to be necessary by the Pianning Commission.

{d} Entrance to the medical cannabis products storage areas shall be locked at all times, and
under the control of facility staff.

(e} Medical cannabis products shall be stored in a secured and locked room, vault or safe, or
other secured storage structure which is bolted to the floor or structure of the premises.

(f} The sale of any medical cannabis products shall be limited to qualified patients, as defined
in Section 11362.7 of the Health and Safety Code.

{(g) Medical cannabis may not be inhaled, smoked, eaten, ingested, vaped, or consumed at the
premises and/or location.

{h) The sales of pipes, including water pipes and other paraphernalia are prohibited.

The project as proposed and conditioned complies with the Performance Standards for Health
and Weliness Centers.

Processing and Distribution

Building two will include processing, packaging and distribution activities for products produced
on-site and off-site. As required, the submitted Plan of Operations includes security provisions,
including a biometric storage/vault area with a 1.5 hour fire rated steel door, material and

PMD tne. CUP PC June 2017




waste management provisions, the use of carbon filter fans to eliminate any potential odors
associated with the activities. The applicants will be hiring US Marijuana Security Solutions out
of Colorado for conducting background checks of all employees and implementing the security
plan. The Plan of Operations includes background information on US Marijuana Security
Solutions. The security plan includes a number of closed circuit cameras strategically placed on
the outside and inside of the building to monitor and record all activities inside and outside the
building.

The State will also require a security pian as well. Below are the State’s required security plan
regulations. The project is conditioned to comply with the State’s requirements as well.

§40200. Security Plan. Every applicant and licensee shall develop and implement 2
security pian. At minimum, the security pian shall include a description of the security
measures to be taken to:

{a) Prevent access to the manufacturing premises by unauthorized personnel and
protect the physical safety of employees. This includes, but is not limited to:

(1) Establishing physical barriers to secure perimeter access and all points of entry into a
manufacturing premises (such as locking primary entrances with commercial-grade,
non-residential door locks, or providing fencing around the grounds, driveway, and any
secondary entrances including windows, roofs, or ventilation systems};

(2) installing a security alarm system to notify and record incident(s) where physical
barriers have been breached;

(3) Establishing an identification and sign-in/sign-out procedure for authorized
personnel, suppliers, and/or visitors;

(4} Maintaining the premises such that visibility and security monitoring of the premises
is possible; and

(5} Establishing procedures for the investigation of suspicious activities.

(b) Prevent against theft or loss of cannabis and cannabis products. This includes but is
not limited to:

{1} Establishing an inventory system to track cannabis material and the personnel
responsible for processing it throughout the manufacturing process;

(2) Limiting access of personnel within the premises to those areas necessary to
complete job duties, and to those time-frames specifically scheduled for completion of
job duties;

PMD Ino. CUP PC June 2017

10



(3) Supervising tasks or processes with high potential for diversion {including the loading
and unloading of cannabis transportation vehicles); and

{4} Providing designated areas in which personnel may store and access personal items.

{c} Secure and back up electronic records in a manner that prevents unauthorized access
and that the integrity of the records is maintained.

The State also has packaging and labeling requirements for cannabis products and
nonmanufactured cannabis products. “Nonmanufactured cannabis product” means dried
flower, shake, leaf, and pre-rolls intended to be sold for use by medical cannabis patients.
Below is a copy of the State’s packaging and iabeling requirements. The iabeling and packing
requirements for cannabis products, which includes everything except nonmanufactured
cannabis products, are virtually the same.

Packaging Cannabis Products for Distribution.

A package used to contain a cannabis product shall adhere to the following
requirements:

{(a) The package shall protect the product from contamination and shall not expose the
product to any toxic or harmful substance;

(b) The package shall be tamper-evident, which means that the product is packaged in a
container within which a product is sealed so that the contents cannot be opened

without obvious destruction of the seal; and

{c) The package shall not imitate any package used for products typically marketed to
children.

Labeling Cannabis Products for Distribution.

The following labeling requirements shall be implemented within 180 days of licensure,
or by December 31, 2018, whichever is sconer:

(a) Any information required to be listed on a labe! shall be written in English;
{b} Label and all required label information shail be unobstructed and conspicuous;

{c) The label shall be in a text size no less than 6 point font and be in relation to the size
of the container; and

{d) The tabel shall include the following information:

PMD Inc. CUP PC June 2017
11



{1} The applicable requirements of Section 15347 of Business and Professions Code;
(2} The net weight of the contents in the package; and

{3) The unigue identifier assigned by the track-and-trace system as required by Section
8402 of this Chapter.

Manufacturing

The applicants are proposing a State Type 7 manufacturing facility in Building 3, Tenant 3 on the
floor plan. Please refer to the Plan of Operation. A Type 7 license allows for extractions using
volatile solvents, nonvolatile solvents or mechanical methods. “Volatile solvent” means any
solvent that is or produces a flammable gas or vapor that, when present in the air in sufficient
guantities, will create explosive or ignitable mixtures. Examples of volatile solvents include but
are not limited to, butane, hexane, propane, and ethanol. “"Nonvolatile solvent” means any
solvent used in the extraction process that is not a volatile solvent. The State considers carbon
dioxide a nonvolatile solvent.

The applicants are proposing a solid/liquid interface, a solid/gas interface, or a sub- or
supercritical extraction process. Regardless of the mechanism used, the extraction technique
may be either countercurrent extraction, percolation, or high-pressure carbon dioxide (CO2)
extraction. The volatile solvents include hexane, butane and dimethyl ether (food grade
alcohol). Apparently the Humboldt Creamery utilizes dimethyl ether in their manufacturing.

Alf volatile extractions will occur in a spark-proof, explosion-proof room that will be equipped
with evacuation fans and lower explosive limit detectors. Blast resistant room will be custom
built by Parkline/Bebco to be under regulations for volatile manufacturing. {Class I, Division 1).

A Type 7 licensee may also conduct infusion operations. “Infusion” means a process by which
cannabis, cannabinoids, cannabis concentrates, or manufactured cannabis are directly
incorporated into a product formulation to produce a cannabis product. The applicants will be
infusing creams, lotions and other similar products. The applicants are not are not proposing
manufacturing edibles at this time.

{12} Performance Standards for Manufacturing Activities:
(a) Compliance with CAL/OSHA, OSHA regulations.

(b} Compliance with State and local building regulations, including the California Building Code
{CBC) and the California Fire Code {CFC).

{c} A Security Plan that addresses how the following measures shall be impilemented or
complied with:

PMD Inc. CUP PC June 2017

12



(i) Entrance to the extraction areas and any cannabis storage areas shall be locked at all
times, and under the control of facility staff.

(i) Medical cannabis shall be stored in buildings that are completely enclosed, and in a
focked vault or safe, or other secured storage structure which is bolted to the floor or
structure of the premises.

{iil) Windows and roof hatches of the premises shall be secured from the inside with
effective means so as to prevent unauthorized entry, and shall be equipped with latches
or a similar mechanism that may be released quickly from the inside to allow exit in the
event of emergency in compliance with all applicable building provisions in the Code.

{d) Hfusing CO; in processing, a professional grade closed-loop CO; gas extraction system rated
to a minimum of fifteen thousand (15,000} pounds per square inch {PSI) is required for
every vessel in the system.

(e) Extraction processes shall use a commercially manufactured professional grade closed-loop
extraction system designed to recover the solvents and built to codes of recognized and
generally accepted sound engineering practices, such as {i) The American Society of
Mechanical Engineers (ASME); (ii) American National Standards Institute (ANSH); (iii)
Underwriters Laboratories (UL); or {iv) The American Society for Testing and Materials
{ASTM).

(f) Volatile extraction operations shall occur in a spark-proof, explosion-proof room equipped
with evacuation fans and lower explosive limit (LEL) detectors.

{g) Carbon filter fans or equivalent superior filters/scrubbers shall be required to eliminate
odor discharges to neighboring properties.

{h} A Waste Management/Disposal Plan shall be submitted describing any produced wastes,
including by-products, recycling, reusing, recovery, storage, diversion and handling and
disposal.

(i) Manufacturers of edibles shall comply with the regulations in the California Health and
Safety Code, which includes the California Retail Food Code administered by the California
Department of Health Services - Food and Drug Branch, California Department of Food and
Agricuiture and the County Department of Environmental Health.

(i} Comply with any special conditions applicable to that permit or parce! which may be
imposed as a condition of the required Conditional Use Permit.

The applicants Plan of Operation demonstrates compliance with the adopted performance
standards. The project is recommended to be conditioned to ensure compliance.

FMD Inc. CUP PC June 2017

13



Mursery

The applicants are proposing that about 2,700 square feet of building 3 be used as a tissue
culture nursery and research facility. Nurseries are identified as a Type 4 State license. The
State has limited the size of nurseries to 43,000 square feet. Below are the State cultivation
requirements for nurseries.

Cultivation Requirements for Nurseries.

{a} Nurseries producing immature plants for distribution may maintain a research and
development area for the cultivation of mature plants. All mature plants shall be tagged
with a unique identifier as required by Section 8402 of the California Code of
Regulations (CCR}. Nonmanufactured cannabis products derived from these plants are
prohibited from entering the commercial distribution chain without the appropriate
cultivation license,

(b} Licensees shall only conduct research and development on the premises in
designated areas identified in their Cultivation Plan approved by the Department.

(c} Nurseries producing seed for distribution shall tag all mature plants as required by
Section 8402 of the California Code of Regulations (CCR). Nonmanufactured cannabis
products derived from these plants are prohibited from entering the commercial
distribution chain without the appropriate cultivation license.

Many people in the industry believe one of the most significant changes coming to the cannabis
industry is the application and use of plant tissue culture technologies.

The process removes a small section of the mother or parent plant calied the explants. Then it
is cleaned and placed in to a sterilized vessel containing a media substrate of agar. In the case
of cannabis, micro nodes are taken from the original stock plant and placed in sterilized test
tubes to grow. After 10-14 days the node has developed into a juvenile cannabis plantlet, with
no roots. Given the proper conditions and fresh growth media, a plantlet can be indefinitely
divided into other explants for new cultures. These new cultures can then be moved into a
cannabis depository for storage, placed into bioreactors, used for experimental trials or
transferred into rooting media and acclimated for cultivation.

Oniy in the past few years have cuitivators taken cannabis tissue culture seriously. As real
demand increases for cannabis and cannabis related products, cultivators of all sizes will need
large quantities of clean, healthy, true to type starter plants. Intellectual property based
around cannabis phenotype development and developed plant traits will rely heavily on tissue
culture and cryopreservation as methods of possession of phenotypes. One of the safest ways
for medically significant cannabis phenotypes to be transported and exchanged is as tissue
culture in sealed vessels.

14



The applicant’s intent is to develop cannabis types that have high levels of CBD's, CBDA's,
CBG's, CBGA's, CBC's, CBCA's and other medicinal cannabinoids. There are at feast 113 known
different cannabinoids. Below is a wheel that identifies various cannabinoids and their
medicinal uses.

~ N /T e

5
i
i

/
/.ﬂ
el
N
5

grewth
[

T Antbactenal
- T tbubde emonr tell gowih
e L Neteo-pratective
e a ',‘i% - Fromotes bone grovdt: _
- FRAST Reduces seizues and convulann
- Redives Muud suyas fovds
; Reduees krchon 1 hetmmune system /
e A Fettces flanmmation /
\ @ ' )

Alkda alcon
cell gty
Siown
Y hootoriad

Fhibits cancer

. e Redyces esk of artery blotkage
‘\0 Hedsees smal mitestng condimnions
- R»::;fuaes voring and navsea
. Hefieves pam
Rebaves srixisly
S, Sles badenal growth
N Suppesssas m srle spasns
Trarquitzng '
Troats pearoask
. Vasorainant

The applicants are proposing to research various strains to identify which strains contain the
types of cannabinoids would be most beneficial for their applications. Staff understands that
once identified, the applicant’s will be able to isolate and extract preferred cannabinoids for
various medicinal applications. The applicants are also proposing the retail sales of clones to
other medicinal cannabis farmers and patients.

The Plan of Operations addresses and complies with the required submittal and operational
requirements of the CMCLUOQ, including a security plan, a waste management and disposal
plan. The project is recommended to be conditioned to ensure compliance.

PMD Inc. CUP PC June 2017



Testing Laboratory

DigiPath Labs will be occupying approximately 2,700 square feet of building 3. DigiPath Labs is
one of the industry leaders in cannabis testing in the State of Nevada. The Plan of Operations

.includes detailed information regarding their services. . According to their website DigiPath
Labs” mission is to provide pharmaceutical-grade analysis and testing to the cannabis industry
to ensure consumers and patients know exactly what is in the cannabis they ingest and to help
maximize the quality of its client’s products through research, development, and
standardization. DigiPath has developed industry-leading standard operating protocols (SOPs}
to ensure marijuana patients know exactly what is—and what isn’t—inside their cannabis-
based medications.

The Medical Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act (MCRSA) makes clear that the protection of
the pubilic is paramount. In keeping with that, the MCRSA required that the Bureau of Medical
Cannabis Regulations (BMCR) develop procedures for ensuring that all medical cannabis goods
are tested prior to delivery to a dispensary for retail sale to medical cannabis patients. The
MCRSA requires that all medical cannabis goods be tested by testing laboratories licensed by
the BMCR for a variety of attributes for the protection of the public. Through the proposed
testing laboratory regulations, the BMCR aims to ensure the medical cannabis goods offered for
sale are safe for human consumption. The BMCR also aims to ensure medical cannabis patients
receive accurate information regarding the medical cannabis goods they consume.

The MCRSA requires the BMCR, with assistance from the California Department of Public Health
{CDPH), to develop health-protective levels for moisture content, contaminants, residual
solvents, microbiological impurities, and foreign material. Consumable medical cannabis goods
are at risk of contamination similar to other consumable products. Contamination may occur
during various stages of the cultivation, harvest, extraction, processing, and packaging
processes. Some of the types of contamination that can make a medical cannabis good unsafe
involves pesticides, residual solvents and processing chemicals, microbiological impurities,
heavy metals, and foreign material. The proposed regulations aim to set forth action levels that
the BMCR considers are both protective of public health and achievable by industry. The
proposed exposure limits are necessary to ensure, to the extent feasible, that no medical
cannabis patient will suffer material impairment of health from exposure to contaminants in
medical cannabis goods. As such, these contaminants are discussed in greater detail:

Chemicals

During the cultivation and manufacturing process, injurious chemicals can contaminate
medical cannabis goods. For instance, solvents are used to extract, in concentrated
amounts, cannabinoids from dried flower. Some of the chemicals used as solvents may
linger after the processing is finished. When present in products intended for human
consumption, excessive amounts of these residual solvents and processing chemicals
may pose risks to human health.

16



Microbiological impurities Some Escherichio coli {E. coli} strains can cause human
disease. One strain produces a toxin called Shiga toxin, which can result in serious
iliness. Because of the fow infectious dose required for disease causation, the bureau
proposes there be zero tolerance for the presence of Shiga toxin—producing £. coli in
medical cannabis goods.

in addition, the presence of Salmonello in cannabis has been documented and, in 1981,
resulted in a multistate outbreak. it has also been associated with gastrointestinal
disease in both heaithy and in immunocompromised populations. The bureau proposes
testing for all Safmonella strains.

There have been a number of cases involving immunocompromised people who have
become ill, or died, from inhaling Aspergillus. Aspergiflus is a fungus that can cause
serious health problems. Certain Aspergillus strains can cause a variety of immune-
reaction fung disorders, ranging from asthma, allergic bronchopulmonary
aspergitlosis, and hypersensitivity pneumonitis to invasive systemic fungal infections.
The bureau proposes testing for this fungus.

Mycotoxins

Mycotoxins are toxic substances produced by certain fungi that can grow on human
food and animal feed grain. Human exposure to mycotoxins, through ingestion,
inhalation, and dermal contact, has been associated with severe human health impacts
that include necrosis, cirrhosis, and carcinomas. The bureau proposes requiring testing
for certain mycotoxins.

Faoreign material

Medical cannabis products may be injurious to health if they consist in whole or in part
of any filthy, putrid, or decomposed substances or is otherwise contaminated by any
added poisonous or added deleterious substance. This may occur if the medical
cannabis goods have been stored, prepared, or packed under unsanitary conditions.

Heavy metals

Cannabis plants are known to uptake metals from contaminated growth media (for
example, soil), which increases the risk of adverse health effects associated with
the consumption of medical cannabis goods. For example, exposure to lead may
cause neurological, reproductive, developmental, immune, cardiovascular, and
renal health effects. And mercury shows toxicological effects such as neurological,
corrosive, hematopoietic, and renal effects as well as cutaneous disease
{acrodynia).

The Public Comment period for the proposed testing regulations ended on June 13, 2017.

DigiPath tests for all the pesticides, residual solvents and processing chemicals, microbiological
impurities, heavy metals, and foreign material that the State has proposed. In addition, they

PMD Inc. CUP PC June 2017

17



test for moisture residue and potency. Of course whatever the State ends up requiring,
DigiPath and all other labs must comply.

DigiPath has developed a comprehensive Standard Operating Procedure Manual (SOP) that is
considered a model in the industry. The SOP has protocols from obtaining samples, chain of
custody, record/data information utilizing the standardized Laboratory Information
Management System (LIMS}), testing protocols, security, storage disposal, etc. Below is a copy
of some of their protocols regarding security, storage and disposal.

SOP-012: Lab Security Measures

Alt visitors of DigiPath Labs are required to sign a Visitor’'s LOGBOOK with their name,
purpose of visit, their entry and exit times. Every visitor to DigiPath Labs are required to
wear a visitor badge and to be escorted and monitored at all times. The visitor badge
will be returned upon leaving.

Security equipment is in place to deter and prevent unauthorized entrance into limited
access laboratory space. Entry into the building is controlled by electronic keypads,
devices are in place to detect unauthorized intrusion. Electronic monitoring includes
video displays, a video printer to capture images from security surveillance cameras.
Video recordings will be stored for at least 30 calendar days.

Electronic monitoring equipment has a failure notification backup system in the event of
a breakdown of the system as well as battery life exceeding 5 minutes in the event of a

power outage.

The electronic monitoring system has an automatic alert to local law enforcement
agencies in the event of a breach of the system.

SOP-313: Receipt and Storage of Cannabis Samples

At DigiPath Labs, receipt and storage of cannabis samples follows DigiPath Labs SOP-
313. First cannabis samples are identified as flower, trim, extract, edible or lotion and
then bar-code labeled according to DigiPath Labs SOP-111 to complete the Chain of
Custody Form 002 following DigiPath Labs SOP-010. Cannabis flower or cannabis-
extracted material is stored in UV-resistant containers at 4°C to prevent any degradation
of inherent cannabinoid and terpene profiles prior to testing. Storage conditions are
monitored by using a suitable thermometer that records the maximum and minimum
temperatures during a 24-hour period. Acceptable temperature ranges should remain
between 12°C and 4°C.

T PMD Inc. CUP PC June 201

18



50P-3214: Destruction of Cannabis Materials

Cannabis plant samples selected for destruction will be recorded as destroyed in LIMS
under DigiPath Labs SOP-344. /Cannabis plant material, extracts, and formulated
products will be destroyed by either autoclaving (121°C under continuous pressure for
20 minutes), mixed with soil at a 1:5 ratio or higher and thrown away as normal waste,
or will be assigned to in house R&D for development of extraction protocols and/or
validation of new procedures which will resulf in the destruction of the material.

All data generated from task must be documented and retained according to DigiPath
Labs SOP-344,

Staff has conditioned the project to comply with all State regulations regarding testing
laboratories. In addition, staff has conditioned the project to comply with the City's
Performance Standards.

{13) Performance Standards for Testing Laboratories

{a) Entrance to the lab area and any cannabis storage areas shall be locked at a#l times, and under the
cantrol of facility staff.

(b} Medical cannabis shall be stored in a secured and locked room, vault or safe, or other
secured storage structure which is bolted to the floor or structure of the premises.

(¢} Windows and roof hatches of the premises shall be secured from the inside with effective
means so as to prevent unauthorized entry, and shall be equipped with latches or a similar
mechanism that may be released quickly from the inside to allow exit in the event of
emergency in compliance with all applicable building provisions in the California Building
Code.

{d) All laboratory testing facilities shall comply with Sections 19341 through 19345 of the
California Business and Professions Code.

{e) Compiy with any special conditions applicable to that permit ar parcel which may be imposed as a
condition of the required Conditional Use Permit.

Z. General Pian Consistency
{b) The proposed use is consistent with the general plan and any applicable specific plan;

The General Plan designation is also Industrial Commercial. The purpose of the Industrial
Commercial designation is to provide for industrial and commercial uses. All the uses would be
considered principally permitted uses if the activities did not involve cannabis. However, a
pharmacy would be allowed to sell “Marinol”. Marino! (dronabinol) is a man-made form of
cannabis (also known as marijuana). Marinol is used to treat loss of appetite that causes weight

PMD Inc. CUP PC June 2017

19



loss in people with AIDS. Itis alsa used to treat severe nauses and vomiting caused by cancer
chemotherapy.

The propaosed distribution and packaging of any other product (i.e. vegetables, fruits, grains,
meat, poultry, etc.j would be principally permitted. The extraction utilizing the same processes
for lavender would also be principally permitted, as would a nursery R&D facility associated
with orchids, lilies, redwood trees, etc. and testing laboratories. In fact many jurisdictions treat
cannabis testing labs the same as any other type of testing lab. For example, the Leaf Detective
which was considering locating in the City eventually located in Eureka as a principaily
permitted use.

The proposed uses are consistent with the following General Plan goal: “To promote a variety
of commercial uses and allow light manufacturing in appropriate commercial areas.”

There are no goals or policies which would preclude the proposed use in the Industrial
Commercial designation. Therefore, the proposed use as conditioned is consistent with the
General Plan.

3. Land Use Compatibility

{c) The design, location, size, and operating charocteristics of the proposed activity are
compatible with the existing and future land uses in the vicinity;

Again, this required finding was made in regards to the design, location and size of the buildings
as part of the Design Review approval in May. Based on the recommended conditions of
approval, including the City’s Performance Standards and the State regulations, staff believes
the project can be found to be consistent with the existing and future land uses in the vicinity.

4, Site Suitability

(d) The site is physically suitable for the type, density and intensity of use being proposed,
including access, utilities, and the absence of physical constraints;

The project site is subject to minimal flooding. Section 17.30.140 of the RDMC requires that if a
proposed building site is located in a fiood zone, any proposed new construction or substantial

improvement, must:

{a} Be designed or maodified and anchored to prevent flotation, coliapse or lateral movement of
the structures;

(b} Use construction materials and utility equipment that are resistant to flood damage; and

{c} Use construction methods and practices that will minimize flood damage.

““PMD Inc. CUP £C June 2017

20



In addition, to our tocal regulations, the project is also subject to FEMA's flood reguiations {Title
44 Code of Federal Regulations, Section 61.7 and 61.8) which require that the first floor of the
structure be located one foot above the Base Fiood Elevation (BFE). As such a Flood Elevation
Certificate is required, this identifies among other site features, the BFE and the elevation of
the fioor of the building. Staff conditioned the Design Review project accordingly.

Of course access to the project site is from Highway 101. In regards to access, the City
commissioned a Traffic Impact Study (TIS) with W-Trans out of Santa Rosa. Based on current
and future conditions, W-Trans concluded that the aceess te and from the Business Park is
adequate. Staff has included the Executive Summary of the TIS as Attachment 2.

However Caltrans has suggested some improvements, including the expansion of the left turn
pockets {queuing), acceleration and deceleration northbound lanes and southbound
staging/merging areas for vehicles exiting the business park. Staff and the stakeholders met
with Caltrans representatives at a recent meeting and discussed the recommended
improvements and the possibility of extending the cable median/barrier through the
intersections to eliminate traffic crossings. Staff has asked that Caltrans identify their preferred
improvements, either the changes to the turn pockets, etc. or the installation of a cable median
barrier through the intersections. Staff also requested that Caltrans identify a threshold {i.e.
number of trips in and out of the Business Park) that would trigger additional improvements.

Any improvement costs will be shared among the developers based on the number of daily
trips generated by their uses. The project has been conditioned accordingly. Please refer to
Exhibit A,

The water main will need to be extended and fire hydrants provided. The applicant has
commissioned plans for the water main extension and has offered to pay the costs. The costs
will be shared with the other properties that will be tying into the water main. The applicant’s
attorney is currently crafting the language for the payback agreement. Thisis an agreement
between the applicant and the other owners and not the City. Once completed to the
satisfaction of the City, the City will assume the maintenance responsibilities.

Based on information on file, including the Traffic Impact Study and the recommended
conditions of approval, staff believes the site is physically suitable for the intended uses.

5. Public Interest, Health, Safety and Welfare
{e) Granting the permit would not be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety,

convenience, or welfare, or materially injurious to persons, praperty, or improvements in the
vicinity and zoning district in which the property is focated;

The new construction is subject to the California Building Codes, including the California Fire
Code, which includes standards to ensure that the buildings are constructed to minimum safety
standards. Again, based on information on file, including the Traffic Impact Study and the

21



recommended conditions of approval, staff believes there is no evidence to suggest that the
proposed project will be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, convenience, or
welfare, or materially injurious to persons, property, or improvements in the vicinity and zoning
district in which the property is located.

6. California Environmental Quality Act

The primary purpose of the California Environmental Quality Act {CEQA) is to inform the
decision makers and the public of potential environmental effects of a proposed project. Based
on the Envirenmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared as part of the annexation of the area into
the City which analyzed potential industrial uses and the nature of the project, including the
proposed operating protocols and recommended conditions of approval, staff has determined
that the project is Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines,
Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15061(b} (3) of the
CEQA Guidelines this exemption is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to
projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Based on
the nature of the proposed projects, staff believes there is no evidence to suggest that the
projects will have a significant effect on the environment.

Attachments:

Attachment 1: Plan of Operations.

Attachment 2: W-Trans Traffic Impact Study Summary.
Attachment 3: Exhibit A, Conditions of Approval.
Attachment 4: Resolution No. PC 112-2017.

A S PR e

PMD Inc. GUP PC June 2017

22



Draft Report

Traffic Impact Study for the
Humboldt-Rio Dell Business Park

inthe

City of Rio Dell

Aprit 26,2017

" SANTAROSA . &0 o
Cor OAKLAND et et ing
St SANJOSE T i oo rgais

ATTACHMENT 2 23



Executive Summary

The Humboldt-Rio Dell Business Park Project would redevelop the former Eal River Sawmill site locatad an the sast
side of US 107 just nofth of the Eef River to provide cannabis production and distribution facilities as wall as other
cannabis related uses. Although the proposed usas at this time arz for the most part cannabis relatad, it should
be noted that the business park would not be limited to cannabis activates. As proposad, the project would
redavelop nine of the existing 16 parcels and would have approximately 160 ermployees. The redevelopment has
the potential to ganerate an average of 626 new trips per day, including 74 vips during the a.m. peak hour and 82

trips during the p.m. peak hour,

The study area includes the intersections of US 107 with Metropolitan Heights Road and Northwestern Avenue,
both of which provide access to the site. Analysis indicates that the study intersections are operating acceptably
under Existing conditions and are expected to continue operating at an acceptable leve! of service upon the
addition of project-generated trips, Under anticipated Futiure volumes, which wers calculated using Caltrans
growth factars, the two study intersections are expected to continde operating acceptably with and without
project-generated trips.

Northwestern Avenue, which provides primary access throughout the site, is in poor condition dus to past use by
logging trucks and other heavy vehicles. In order to provide adequate access to the naw facifities, the City rmay
wish to develop an impact fee for the potential devalopments that would cover the cost of paving the roadway
and providing other improvements, such as street lighting, as deemed necessary by the City. The fee could be
based on the proportional share of trips anticipated to be generated by each parcel, which was calculated as part
of the analysis.

Northwestarn Avenue is predominantly straight and flat throughout the project site, so while specific locations
for driveways have not been determined, sight distance is not expected to be an issue. As sita plans for individual
parcels become available, sight distance should be field checked at proposed driveway lacations to maintain sight
tings of at least 150 feet along the roadway.

Queuing was analyzed to determine the adequacy of the existing southbound left-turn lanes on US 101 at the
study intersections to accommodate project generated traffic. It was determined that a maximum of two vehiclas
would be expected to quaue at Metropolitan Heights Road and one vehicle at Northwestern Avenue under Future
plus Project conditions. Both left-turn lanes have space to accommodate threa vehicles so the turn lanes are
adequate to accommodate the projected maximum two-vehicle queue.

Traffic impact Study for the Humbeldt-Rio Dell Business Park
April 26, 2017

24



EXHIBITA

Conditions of Approval
PMD Inc. Conditional Use Permit
File Mo. 205-111-021; Case No's. CUP 17-01

Conditions of Approval

1. Security Plan: The permittee shall modify the security plan to include the information
required by Section 40200 et. seq of the California Code of Regulations. At minimum, the
security plan shall inciude a description of the security measures to be taken to:

{a) Prevent access to the premises by unauthorized personnel and protect the physical
safety of employees. This includes, but is not limited to:

(1) Establishing physical barriers to secure perimeter access and all points of entry into a
manufacturing premises {such as locking primary entrances with commercial-grade, non-
residential door locks, or providing fencing around the grounds, driveway, and any
secondary entrances including windows, roofs, or ventilation systems);

(2) Installing a security alarm system to notify and record incident(s) where physical
barriers have been breached;

{3) Establishing an identification and sign-in/sign-out procedure for authorized personnel,
suppliers, and/or visitors;

{4} Maintaining the premises such that visibility and security monitoring of the premises is
possible; and

{5) Establishing procedures for the investigation of suspicious activities.

(b) Prevent against theft or foss of cannabis and cannabis products. This includes but is not
limited to:

(1) Establishing an inventory system to track cannabis material and the personnel
responsible for processing it throughout the manufacturing process;

(2} Limiting access of personnel within the premises to those areas necessary to complete
job duties, and to those time-frames specifically scheduled for completion of job duties;

(3) Supervising tasks or processes with high potential for diversion (including the loading
and unloading of cannabis transportation vehicles); and

ATTACHMENT & 25



(4) Providing designated areas in which personnef may store and access personal items.

(c) Secure and back up electronic records in a manner that prevents unauthorized access
and that the integrity of the records is maintained.

2. Records and Reporting

Record Retention. The term record includes: all records, applications, reports or other
supporting documents required by the City and the State.

{a) Each permitiee shall keep and maintain the records listed in subsection (e} for at least 7
years from the date the document was created.

(b} Records shall be kept in a manner that allows the records to be immediately produced for
the City at the permitted premises.

(c) All records related to commercial cannabis activity are subject to inspection by the City.

(d} A permittee may contract with a third party to provide custodial or management services of
the records. Such a contract shall not relieve the licensee of its responsibilities under this
condition.

{e) Each permittee shall maintain ali of the following records on the licensed premisesor at 2
different location identified by the licensee and approved by the City, including but not limited
10!

{1} City and State issued permits and license(s);

{2} Plan of Operations;

{3} Ali records evidencing compliance with the environmental protection measures required in
Sections 8313, 8314, and 8315 of the California Code of Regulations;

(4) Any supporting documentation for data or information input into the track-and-trace
system;

(5) Financial records, including but not limited to, bank statements, tax records, invoices, and

sales receipts;

PMD Inc, CUP PC June 2017

26



{6) Personnel records, including each employee’s full name, social security, or individua! tax
payer identification number, date of beginning employment, and date of termination of
employment if applicable;

{7} Training records, including but not limited to the content of the training provided and the
names of the employees that received the training;

{8) Contracts with other state licensed medical cannabis businesses;

{9) Permits, licenses, and other local authorizations to conduct the licensee’s commercial

cannabis activity;
(10} Security records; and
(11) Records associated with the composting or disposal of waste.

(f) All required records shall be prepared and retained in accordance with the foliowing

conditions:
(1) Records shall be legible; and

{2) Records shall be stored in a secured area where the records are protected from debris,
moisture, contamination, hazardous waste, fire and theft.

3. Background Checks

Owner(s) or employee(s}) who makes or will make operational or management decisions
that directly impact the business shall consent to a background check pursuant to Section
19322(a}(1){A} of the Business and Professions Code, including submitting to the Department of
Justice fingerprint images and related information required by the Department of Justice for
the purpose of obtaining information as to the existence and content of a record of State or
Federal convictions and arrests, and information as to the existence and content of a record of
State and Federal convictions and arrests for which the Department of Justice establishes that
the person is free on bail or on his or her own recognizance, pending trial or appeal. The
applicant shall be responsible for the costs associated with the required background check.

(i) No Owner or employee who makes or will make operational or management
decisions that directly impact the business shall have been convicted of an offense,
or is currently free on bail or on his or her own recognizance pending trial or
appeal for an offense, that is substantially related to the qualifications, functions,

5o o sy o T = e s

PMD Inc. CUP PC June 201

27



or duties of the business or profession for which the application is made, including
but not be limited to, the following:

{A} Afelony conviction for the illegal possession for sale, manufacture,
transportation, or cultivation of a controlied substance;

(8} A violent felony conviction, as specified in subdivision {c) of Section 667.5 of
the Penal Code.

{C} A serious felony conviction, as specified in subdivision {c} of Section 1192.7
of the Penal Code.

{D} A felony conviction involving fraud, deceit, or embezzlement.

4. Health and Wellness Center: The applicant shall comply with the Performance Standards in
Section 17.30.195({14) of the Ric Dell Municipal Code (RDMC).

5. Processing and Distribution: The applicant shall comply with ail State regulfations regarding
processing, packaging and distribution, including packaging and labeling.

6. Manufacturing: The applicant shall comply with the Performance Standards in Section
17.30.195(12) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) and any applicable State regulations.

7. Nursery: The applicant shall comply with the Cultivation Performance Standards in Section
17.30.185(10} of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) and any applicable State regulations.

8. Laboratory: The applicant shall comply with the Testing Laboratories Performance
Standards in Section 17.30.195(13) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code {(RDMC) and any applicable
State regulations.

9. Community Relations: Each medical cannabis facility shall provide the City Manager or
designee with the name, phone number, facsimile number, and email address of an on-site
community relations or staff person or other representative to whom the City can provide
notice if there are operating problems associated with the medical cannabis facility or refer
members of the public who may have any concerns or complaints regarding the operation of
the medical cannabis facility. Each medical cannabis facility shall also provide the above
information to its business neighbors located within 300 feet of the medical cannabis facility.

10. Inspections: Consent to a minimum of at least one quarterly on-site compliance
inspection, to be conducted by appropriate City officials during regular business hours (Monday

e o S S e e L i e ek e e U T R

PMD inc. CUF PC June 2017

28



- Friday, 9:00 am - 5:00 pm, excluding holidays]. The applicant shall be required to pay the
inspection Fee in effect at that time.

11. Highway 101, Metropolitan Heights and Northwestern Intersection Improvements: Any
required improvement costs to the Highway 101 and Metropolitan Heights and Northwestern
Intersections will be shared among the developers based on the number of daily trips
generated by their uses.

12. The applicant shall execute the Release of Liability and Hold Harmless Agreement required
by Section 17.30.195{4) of the Rio Dell Municipa! Code (RDMC).

et T T S L B

PMD Inc. CUP FC June 20

29



RESOLUTION NO. PC 112-2017

iy wH

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL
APPROVING THE PMD CANNABIS ACTIVITY CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

WHEREAS PMD Incorporated (Glen White Group) has submitted an application for a
Cannabis Activity Conditional Use Permits on a 3.5+/- acre parcel located at the
Humboldt Rio Dell Business Park; and

WHEREAS Building one {1}, the northerly building will include four (4) units of retail
commercial use, including a Holistic Spa, a Health and Wellness Center, a retail clothing
store and a coffee bistro. it will be a one (1) story building, 7,200 sq. ft. w/2400 sq. ft.
mezzanine. The Health and Weliness Center will be providing the holistic and
therapeutic application and safes of medical cannabis products, including oils,
tinctures, sublingual’s, creams, lotions, pills, suppositories, cosmetics, etc. The sale of
flowers, trim, leaf or cannabis infused edibles are not allowed: and

WHEREAS building two {2} the middle building will be used for a commercial medical
cannabis warehouse, distribution and packaging facility. It too will be a one (1) story
building, 10,141 sq. ft. w 3,210 sq. ft. mezzanine; and

WHEREAS building three (3), the southerly building will include a cannabis testing
laboratory (DigiPath}, a concentrate manufacturing facility manufacturing oils, tinctures,
sublingual’s, creams, lotions, cosmetics, etc. The oils will be made utilizing volatile
materials (i.e. hexane, butane and Dimethylether). The manufacturing of the oils and
storage of volatile materials will be done in spark-proof blast rooms designed and built
by Parkline Industries. Building three (3} will also include the research and development
of cannabis medicinal products, a tissue culturing operation and associated plant
nursery; and

WHEREAS the Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance (CMCLUO), Section
17.30.195 allows medical cannabis facilities in the Sawmill Annexation area with a
Conditional Use Permit. As such, the proposed uses are ailowed; and

2 @ 5

PMD (Glen White) PC Resolution No. 112-2017. June

ATTACHMENT - 30



WHEREAS The buildings were evaluated for compliance with the development
standards of the Industrial Commercial (iC) zone, including setbacks, lot coverage,
building height, parking, design review, landscaping etc. as part of the Design Review
approval; and

WHEREAS the purpose of the industrial Commercial zone is to provide for industrial and
commercial uses; and

WHEREAS based on the information submitted, staff recommends that the proposed
uses be found to be consistent with the development standards of the Industrial
Commercial {IC) zone and the Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance,
Section 17.30.195 and the Use Permit requirements of Section 17.35.030 of the Rio Dell
Municipal Code; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell
finds that as conditioned:

WHEREAS The proposed use is consistent with the general plan and any applicable
specific plan; and

WHEREAS The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the proposed
activity are compatible with the existing and future land uses in the vicinity; and

WHEREAS the site is physically suitable for the type, density and intensity of use
being proposed, including access, utilities, and the absence of physical constraints

WHEREAS granting the permit would not be detrimental to the public interest, health,
safety, convenience, or welfare, or materially injurious to persons, property, or
improvements in the vicinity and zoning district in which the property is located; and

WHEREAS the proposed project has been processed in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA);.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Resolution was PASSED and ADOPTED at a regular
meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell on June 27, 2017 by the
following vote:

PMD (Glen White] PC Resolution No. 112.2017 June 27 2017 o

31






